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Meeting notes distribution: Attendees       
Note: events or activities that occurred after the actual meeting are shown [bracketed]. 
Notes prepared by KIRK PETERSON AND ASSOC. These notes will be relied on as an accurate record of issues discussed and 
conclusions reached, unless the preparer is notified otherwise within one week from date of receipt.

 

Attendees:      
Kirk Peterson (KP)                KPA 
Avi Nevo                                  
 

Guillermo Otero (GO)          KPA 
 

Action    No                          Item 

KP 

0.1 

PRESENTATION 
  ‐SHADOW STUDY 
  ‐ 3 TIER PARKING GARAGE UNDERGROUND 
  ‐GROUND FLOOR RETAIL 
   ‐11 UNITS FOR EVERY LEVEL 
 
*GREAT FOR NEW BAR/RESTAURANT 
 

 

0.2 

CONTEXT PHOTOS 
*STAMPED SHEETMETAL / GALV. STL. NOT PAINTED 

 
0.3 

ELEVATIONS 
MOSTLY GLASS WITH TALL CEILINGS 18’ WITH MEXANINE. 
TYPE 3 75’ 5 FLOORS ABOVE DECK 

 
1 

*MATERIAL OVER ALL MIGHT BE OVERWELMING. BIG SAMPLE.
76’x134’ SITE.  
804+9380=10184 
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2071-2074 Addison 
 
 
Attachments included: 
 
1. Building Permit 61023, April 16, 1947  
2. Building Permit 91883, March 23, 1961 
3. Building Permit 112754, October 15, 1968 
4. Violation Notice, 711152, January 28, 1974 
5. Change of Occupancy November 16, 1976 
6. Building Permit 100777705, September 20, 1977 
7. Email from Franklin Maggi at Archives and Architecture, February 25, 2016 
8. Map of proposed district and boundaries 
 
Supporting documents: 
 
1. DPR523A, recorded March 2, 2015  
2. Shattuck Avenue Commercial Corridor Historic Context and Survey, September        
15, 2015 
 
 
History: 
 
1922 The site was under construction for William Woolsey as a "Class C-garage. 
 Prior to this time the site had been livery stable. 
1923 Completed and opened as garage, the building consisted of two rooms, and 
 was constructed of brick and tile 
1947 $12,500 building altered for furniture store 
 new plate glass front 
 plaster inside walls and ceiling 
 install new wiring 
 move existing toilet and basin 
 repaint inside and out 
 repair existing trusses where needed 
1968 $9,000 of fire damage repaired, additional show window added 
1974 "The front wall consists of a large spandrel of brick construction supported 
 by a concrete beam, which in turn is supported by corner columns of brick 
 and two intermediate pipe columns. Cracking is observed in the stucco 
 facing of the spandrel, generally associated with the brick/concrete interface 
 and the beam-to-column connection at one corner. 
1976 Aurora Theater company 
1977 Poppy Fabric, Dutcher and Hanf Architects  
 exterior flagpoles added 
1987 Vacant 135/237 
1988 Gold's Gym 117/237 
1994 Parapet braced and concrete applied to parapet walls 
 
 



 
 
1. The building does not retain it's original character. 
 
The period of significance for the potential historical district 2072-2074 Addison 
potentially contributes to is 1920-1958. It has not been determined that it 
contributes significantly and it lies on the edge of the proposed boundaries. There 
are no know building plans, but it is known that construction began in 1922 and 
that prior to construction the site had been a livery stable. The building was 
designed as a Class-C auto garage, in 1947 it was converted to a furniture store, in 
1977 it was remodeled as a fabric store, in 1987 it was vacant, and it is currently a 
gym. It is not eligible for the National Register of Historic Places or California 
Register of Historical Resources because of the extensive changes and little of the 
earliest historic fabric remains. While the building has integrity of location and 
setting, the original materials and workmanship have been lost.  
 
The inward angled display windows are in the mid-century style, added in 1947, to 
draw people in from the sidewalk. In 1961 an additional show window was added. 
The original brick and tile building details have been lost and the only detail, 
which remains visible is a double course of brick coping on the top of the parapet. 
Highly visible masonry ties, from 1994, across the entire width of the building 
indicate that the upper wall consists of historic masonry of some kind. According 
to a 1974 description under the current stucco lies "a large spandrel of brick 
construction supported by a concrete beam, which in turn is supported by corner 
columns of brick  and two intermediate pipe columns. Cracking is observed in the 
stucco facing of the spandrel, generally associated with the brick/concrete 
interface and the beam-to-column connection at one corner." In the late 1930s to 
the 1940s an FHA loan program to “modernize” main street downtowns by hiding 
or removing historical details was implemented, potentially explaining the 1974 
description of the building, and the missing original tile.  
 
2. It marks the beginning of a period of decline for Berkeley's downtown core 
which developed around rail lines not the automobile.  
 
The downtown core developed into the late 19th Century around the historic 
railyard on Berkeley Square with walkable urban commercial development. 2072-
2074 Addison was constructed following the rapid adoption of the automobile as a 
car service building, precipitating the eventual decline of Berkeley's historic 
downtown core. The area South of Durant, which is not in the Shattuck Avenue 
Commercial Corridor Historic Context and Survey, developed later around the 
automobile. In 1938 the Southern Pacific on Berkeley Square was demolished. 
1948 marked the end of streetcars in Berkeley. In the late 1950's of interurban 
train service ended marking the end of Berkeley decline as major transit hub. The 
completion of BART in 1972 and the development of suburbs led to the continued 
deterioration of the district, shopping moved to El Cerrito and Richmond's Hilltop 
Mall, by 1987 the building was vacant. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Conclusion: 
 
While the form visible today links to the development the historic downtown 
Berkeley core, little material from the original building, remains and it is secondary 
to more significant buildings. There are many remaining examples of the type, 
which retain more original details.  
 
2072-2074 Addison evolved from a livery stable, to a car service building and was 
converted to retail. While it signifies progress, it also marks a moment in the 
beginning of the decline of the urban core. A denser use of space would increase 
vitality of the district. It would be more authentic, align with current thinking, and 
help support the use of buildings more significant to history. Berkeley is 
progressing to more modern means of transportation, rather than the automobile, 
which in fact mirror its early history.  
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